PALMER TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
GENERAL BUSINESS MEETING
JUNE 29, 2010

A general business meeting of the Palmer Township Board of Supervisors was held on
Tuesday, June 29, 2010 at 7:00 p.m. in the Community Room of the Charles Chrin Community
Center with four Supervisors in attendance: David Colver, Robert Lammi, Michael Mitchell and
Robert Smith. Ann-Marie Panella was absent. Also in attendance were the Township Manager,
Planning Director, Police Chief, Township Engineer and Attorney James Pfeiffer and Attorney
Rich Wenner. Township Solicitor Bruno was absent. Colin McEvoy from the Express Times
and Chris Baxter from the Morning Call represented the news media. Chairman Colver
convened the meeting and led those present in the Pledge to the Flag.

2. APPROVAL OF DISBURSEMENT OF FUNDS JUNE 29, 2010

INFORMATION

The report will be provided at the meeting.
DISCUSSION

On motion by Mitchell, seconded by Smith, and agreed by all, the Board approved the
disbursement of funds for June 29, 2010.

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES — JUNE 14, 2010

DISCUSSION

On motion by Lammi, seconded by Smith, and agreed by all, the Board approved the
minutes of June 14, 2010.

4. STOCKER/CARLSON MINOR SUBDIVISION

INFORMATION

The Board needs to approve/disapprove the minor subdivision.
DISCUSSION

Planning Director, Cyndie Carman, said the plan proposes the subdivision of a 45.3+ acre
tract located along the west side of Van Buren Road, south of Route 33, into two lots. One lot
will consist of 8.0+ and the other lot 37.4+ acres. Carman said the site is located within the
Planned Industrial/Commercial zoning district. Currently the land has dual ownership and Mr.
Chrin is anticipating purchasing a piece of the property.

Attorney Steve Goudsouzian said he is Mr. Chrin’s attorney. Goudsouzian said there
were eight acres that were utilized for various parts of a project and we need that acreage to
complete the work. We would be purchasing Lot 1. The remainder would remain under the
Stocker and Carlson ownership. Colver said this went through the planning process and received



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS PAGE 2 JUNE 29, 2010

their recommendation for approval. Township Engineer Dillman said the water supply system
will need to be deferred because there is no development proposed at this time.

On motion by Smith, seconded by Lammi, and agreed by all, the Board approved the
minor subdivision subject to the following conditions: the applicant satisfactorily fulfill the
comments of the Township Engineer’s letter dated May 28, 2010 to the satisfaction of the
Township Engineer; the applicant satisfactorily fulfill the items listed on the township
departmental comment sheet dated June 3, 2010; the applicant will address the voluntary traffic
contribution and recreation fee to the satisfaction of the Board of Supervisors at the time of
development; the applicant enter into a subdivision improvements agreement with the township
in the event that there are to be public improvements dedicated to the township; the applicant
post financial security in a form satisfactory to the Township Solicitor; the Board approved the
following deferrals: 165-59.C(2) — widening of Van Buren Road, 165-69.A — installation of
sidewalks on Van Buren Road, 165-75.A — installation of curbs on Van Buren Road, 165-61.E —
installation of 15-foot planting strip along Route 33, 165-65.B — installation of on-lot water
supply system.

5. D’ANGELO LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT

INFORMATION

The Board needs to approve/disapprove the lot line adjustment.

DISCUSSION

Carman said the plan proposes the resubdivision of a 0.98+ acre tract located at the
northeast corner of Greenwood and Freemansburg Avenues, into two lots. One lot consisting of
0.27+ and the other lot 0.86+ acres with no further development proposed at this time. Lot one
will contain an existing twin dwelling with access to Freemansburg Avenue. Lot two is
proposed to contain the existing Steve’s Pizza building and associated parking with access from
Greenwood Avenue, as well as assimilating the right-of-way area of Virginia Street, a paper
street. The site is located within the Medium Density Residential zoning district. Carman said
there were changes required at Steve’s Pizza due to the Greenwood Avenue project and he lost
some parking and was required to move his sign. Carman said the Zoning Hearing Board
approved the non-conforming lot and sign size and the item went through Planning with a
recommendation for approval.

Attorney Louis Minotti was in attendance representing Mr. D’ Angelo from Steve’s Pizza.
Minotti said a variance was granted for the size of the lot and relocation of the sign. Minotti said
the Planning Commission also unanimously approved the plan. Engineer Domenick Colangelo
reviewed the plan with the Board.

On motion by Lammi, seconded by Smith, and agreed by all, the Board approved the lot
line adjustment conditioned on the applicant satisfactorily addressing the items outlined on the

township departmental comment sheet dated June 3, 2010.

6. GENERAL COMMERCIAL ORDINANCE AMENDMENTS

INFORMATION




BOARD OF SUPERVISORS PAGE 3 JUNE 29, 2010

The Board needs to approve/disapprove the ordinance.
DISCUSSION

On motion by Lammi, seconded by Mitchell, and agreed by all, the Board approved an
ordinance amending the Palmer Township Zoning ordinance Section 190-76 pertaining to the
general commercial (GC) zoning district to provide for the sale of retail goods, prepared foods
and/or services, also amending section 190-77 to permit a shopping center, up to a maximum of
250,000 square feet of gross floor area as a conditional use in the general commercial district,
amending section 190-82 to further define area and bulk regulations pertaining to shopping
centers, and also amending section 190-210.B to provide a subsection (39) listing additional
conditions for approval of a shopping center.

7. COMMERCIAL VEHICLE ORDINANCE AMENDMENTS

INFORMATION

The Board needs to approve/disapprove the ordinance.
DISCUSSION

On motion by Smith, seconded by Lammi, and agreed by all, the Board approved the
ordinance amending sections 190-13, 190-169, 190-211.E(10)(a)[5] by changing the definition
of a commercial vehicle permitting parking of a commercial vehicle with a Penndot registration
of up to Class 5 in certain areas including in connection with a lawful home occupation and
further limiting truck traffic to a lawful home occupation.

8. JOSEPH I SECURITY RELEASE

INFORMATION

The Board needs to approve/disapprove the security release.
DISCUSSION

Carman said this was initially a phased plan for the Embassy Bank site and then a retail
building to be constructed in the future. Carman said they had posted for the entire project rather
than individual phases. Carman said we are now releasing category two items specifically
related to the second phase of the project. They will post security when they are ready to build
the second phase.

On motion by Lammi, seconded by Mitchell, and agreed by all, the Board approved the
security release for Joseph I in the amount of $43,207.89.

9. HIGHLANDS LETTER OF CREDIT RELEASE

INFORMATION

The Board needs to approve/disapprove the letter of credit release.



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS PAGE 4 JUNE 29, 2010

DISCUSSION

Terry Clemons, with Clemons, Rickert and Reese in Doylestown, represented the
Highlands Homeowner’s Association. Clemons introduced Drew Disessa the engineer for the
Highlands Association. Clemons said in 2004 the township entered into a land development
subdivision improvements agreement with the Highlands of Glenmoor, LP. Clemons said all
improvements in this development will become the associations responsibility. Clemons said
The Pidcock Company at that time made a list of improvements required by the developer and
they posted $3.5 million in security. Clemons said when they reached the 18-month maintenance
period they were required to secure $513,600. Clemons said his review of the file shows that the
township has documented the status of completion of improvements. There were a series of
extensions documented over the years. Now the 18-month period expiration is here and you can
see by the attendance tonight that the residents are concerned. Clemons said the developer is
Traditions of America and their name is not on the improvements agreement that was entered
into with the Highlands of Glenmoor.

Clemons said the Pidcock Company completed a close out inspection on April 23, 2010
and issued a letter May 5, 2010 that listed a number of areas where improvements need to be
repaired or maintained before money is released. Clemons said in meetings with township
representatives the board of the Highlands were led to believe the release would not happen until
the items were addressed. Clemons said the association hired engineer Drew Disessa and his
report states that none of this work was completed. Clemons read Disessa’s letter outlining the
work that was not completed. Disessa estimated it would take approximately $75,000 to
complete the remaining work. Clemons said there was an email exchange from Mr. Haberbosch
of The Pidcock Company to the township planning director that it appears $25,000 should be
sufficient for the remaining work. Clemons noted Mr. Dillman’s follow-up email noted the
township may want to hold $25,000 for the additional work. We are questioning whether the
township should allow this to expire without having a larger payment and formal process
outlined. Clemons said we are concerned that the letter of credit could expire tomorrow too.
Clemons said we propose the Board of Supervisors authorize a resolution to draw down the letter
of credit to $75,000 and another $25,000 for the trees that fall under category two items.
Clemons said we are proposing the developer put up $100,000 for the outstanding items.

Colver said the township engineer office - The Pidcock Company, has been through this
site along with the Township Manager. Dillman said the category two items like trees, lighting,
signs, etc. are monitored by the township staff, not by the township engineer’s office. Planning
Director Carman issues those releases. Carman said trees were the only item on the original
punch list. We documented some trees for future inspection. The developer replaced the trees
on the list and where there were trees with no growth, they had bloomed by that time. Colver
asked if she felt the category two items were complete. Carman said yes — the items from the
punch list were addressed. Carman said since then we received a list from an arborist hired by
the association claiming disease, miss-planting, etc. Colver said from a township standpoint we
say the category two items were completed. Carman said yes. Clemons asked if the township
checked the arborist statements that states the trees were diseased and needed to be replaced.
Carman said disease and insects are not covered under the maintenance agreement and would not
have been a result of the developer’s actions.

Dillman reviewed in detail the township engineer’s office position on all 12 items
outlined in the association’s letter. Dillman said the low flow levels in the basins need to come



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS PAGE § JUNE 29, 2010

up to speed and there are less than five inlets that need to be filled. They would be covered in
the $25,000. Colver asked if the Board members had any questions, there were none.

Association engineer, Drew Disessa, said about two years ago when the association was
to take over the development from the developer they hired him to look at issues. At that time
the developer was on-site doing construction. Disessa said now two years later I was re-
contacted by the association and I went out and looked at everything again. Disessa said he feels
there was very little improvement since my visit two years ago. Disessa said his review may be
a little more in detail than what is required by the township engineer. I’m looking at concerns
from the resident’s perspective regarding poor drainage. Disessa said he feels the detention
basin rip rap apron is not positioned correctly; it creates a slope and could have been improved.
Disessa said the low flow channels in large rains could create ponds. Disessa said he feels the
areas that were to be regraded were not regraded, they just threw additional top soil down.
Lammi asked about the back yard drainage issues of the residents and asked if he felt those
issues should be handled as public improvements. Disessa said they are not public
improvements but if it was on township property they would be. Smith asked if he felt two years
ago when he looked at the issues and he felt changes were necessary — should it have required a
plan change. Disessa said we felt there were areas on the plan that were not being followed.
Smith asked other than water ponding and grass not growing does the storm water system
function. Disessa said it moves water away in a certain period of time with no flooding of
homes.

Colver said I believe both sides agree that the lion’s share of money should be released to
the developer. Clemons said yes. Clemons said it will be up to the association after security is
released to cover any of these issues. We want you to consider that when you make your
decision.

Colver asked for public comment before a motion is placed on the floor since there are so
many individuals in attendance.

Ron Giglio, President of the Highlands of Glenmoor Association, said on June 3 we met
with Bob Anckaitis, Cyndie Carman and Dough Haberbosch asking what the status of the rework
was. We were told that most of what the developer did needed to be redone. Giglio said then on
June 7 we received a letter from Cyndie Carman stating everything was done. Giglio said during
that short period of time we saw no one doing any work on site. Giglio said there are two drain
swales, one was missed on the walk through list behind lots 4 & 5. That drainage is running over
Corriere Road. Giglio said a berm was to be built — it wasn’t done. 95% of the punch list has
not been done. If you were to go to Glenmoor tonight — they reseeded, put top soil down and
covered everything. They never did that in our development. From June 3 to June 7 how could
all that work have been completed. You can’t do everything the engineer is saying needs to be
done for $25,000. We need you to help us, to protect us. We are the residents of Palmer
Township. Giglio said we are not at all happy about the trees. We were told the tree inspection
consisted of Ms. Carman driving through the development and if it was green, it was okay. We
have to replace those trees. If you don’t protect us we will have to replace all the diseased trees.

Colver said there are some legal issues that the Board will need to discuss since there is a
deadline of tomorrow. Colver said he would entertain a motion for the Board to go into
executive session. Colver said no decisions will be made until we come back in this room.



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS PAGE 6 JUNE 29, 2010

George Broseman, attorney for the applicant said he’s been involved with this work for a
number of years and the township staff has done a very thorough job. Broseman said it sounds
like the township has given more scrutiny to this project than most other projects. The staff told
you there were no issues on trees. The township engineer has done a very thorough job and he
feels that $25,000 is enough money to hold for the public improvements that are outstanding.
There was over $3 million secured years ago and there were very thorough reviews as that
money was drawn down over the years. Broseman said based on the Municipal Planning Code
language and proper standards, and what we heard from the staff here tonight, things are working
properly. Broseman said we agree with the recommendation and we ask that you vote to
approve the release keeping the $25,000 for the outstanding issues. Broseman said he
understands this is a difficult position but this is not a popularity contest or a political decision,
but a legal decision. Broseman said he believes there is no legal base to not release the amount
requested.

On motion by Lammi, seconded by Mitchell, and agreed by all, the Board voted to break
out into an executive session at 8:44 p.m.

On motion by Lammi, seconded by Mitchell, and agreed by all, the Board reconvened the
meeting at 9:10 p.m.

Colver reconvened the meeting asking for public comment.

Marty Reagle, 70 Moor Drive, said he listened to both engineers tonight and he
previously served on the Forks Township Sewer Authority for many years. Reagle said he never
heard anything tonight about the as built drawing. Your engineer said it’s almost built. I have a
problem with that. In five years that may be a big problem. We have to spend $100,000 because
it wasn’t built correctly.

Anthony Aramgno, 25 Glasgow Way, asked the township engineer if he was familiar
with the swale behind the homes on the south side of Glasglow Way. Aramgno said which way
is the water that runs off the swale supposed to go? Dillman said he would not know without
looking at a plan. Aramgno said there are two catch basins at the end of Glasglow Way but
water doesn’t run to the ends. Aramgno reviewed the flow of the water in all directions and said
it appears the swale was designed incorrectly.

Sally Reynolds, 29 Edinburgh Drive, said Traditions of America addressed drainage
issues for the people that moved in the development in the beginning but they didn’t follow up
with others. We called them and went to speak to them and they don’t address or acknowledge
our issues. Water doesn’t drain off of our lot.

Jackie Zito, 56 Edinburgh Drive, said she just moved in within the last month and her
inspection report says she can not use her lot when it rains. Nothing has been done with the
property as well — all three sides of her home.

Tim Fisher, 68 Moor Drive, said he is an attorney and a solicitor in Pennsylvania and it
really bothers him in listening to this that the township doesn’t have anything itemized on what
still needs to be done. The planning code lists the requirements to be held, you’ve reduced it
down but without the itemization — how can you make an intelligent decision. You have to
understand the association is going to have to take on these things if you let them go.



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS PAGE 7 JUNE 29, 2010
John Reed, 94 Moor Drive, said water lies in their backyard for several days after it rains.
Marty Joyce, 104 Moor Drive, said we have diseased and dying trees.
Loyd Hall, 6 Kelso Ridge, said he has a problem with the type of trees planted.

Carvel Hoffman, 48 Inverness Lane, said there is an area where grass has never grown,
crushed stone is more abundant than the grass. Hoffman said he’s been at his property since
November 2007 and the area around the house and side was sodded but the rest was power
seeded. Nothing has ever been done with that area since then. Hoffman said the area in the back
should have a swale but there is only a gully. Hoffman said there is a depression on the
northwest corner of the detention pond where water collects and backs up. There is a tree at the
end of Inverness that is dead and an evergreen that has never been green. It’s been dead for a
year and a half.

Phil Gambutti, 92 Moor Drive, said his wife used to be on the township Shade Tree
Commission. Gambutti said there are many trees that came to us damaged, bark was cut into,
branches had no growth or they were diseased and had insects. They didn’t give us healthy stuff.
It was poor quality merchandise. There is some green on them now but combined with improper
planting, they are on the way of dying.

Dave Monaghan, 12 Glasgow Way, said detention basin #1 on the final drawings of the
plan, page 6 of 21, shows the dimension of the basin. The rip rap situation overlaps and comes
out in front of two storm water pipes — it goes to the left of DW14 to the larger one. It stops
where the pipe comes out. I can look down the channel and see the water fly out of there
because the larger one doesn’t have the apron. I measured it and it is approximately 33 feet wide
at the widest point. It should be around 47 feet if it was built out where the erosion is. When we
have significant rain it all goes to detention basin #1. We as the owners will have to fix it if it
doesn’t work. We would like it fixed now.

Charles Volpe, 13 Devonshire Drive, said nails keep popping out of his sheet rock.
Colver said he understands there are personal issues with your homes but those are an
owner/developer issue, not a township issue.

Colver said most people that know me know I am a very reasonable person. I’ve grown
up with some of your kids and I’ve been at your community for meetings. Our job is to make
sure the developer finishes the things he is supposed to do from a public standpoint. We can not
do anything about some issues on your personal properties. They are private issues between you
and your developer. My personal opinion is there are things that were brought up tonight that are
not documented on paper. There are some legitimate concerns regarding storm water issues and
I’m concerned $25,000 may not be enough. Colver said $100,000 is probably taking it to the
extreme. My suggestion is to hold $50,000 and release the rest. The developer is due 80 or 90%
of that money. Colver said most of you know I voted against this community five years ago. 1
felt this development was in the wrong place. My peers supported it and I am here to make it
work but we need to bring this thing to a close.

Smith said he voted for the project but now he’s wondering why. I wanted a place to go
in the township. I believe it’s a great project but I agree there are issues that need to be
addressed. Mr. Reagle said it best — I’d also like to see it built like the plan. We will come up



